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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 
The research and restoration is being carried out by Dr. Margaret Keyes, 
University of Iowa Foundation. She has suppied the following data:

John Francis Raque designed Old Capitol in 1839 in the Greek Revival style. 
The building is rectangular and measures 120 feet in length and 60 feet in 
width. It is constructed of the Coralville member of the Cedar Valley 
limestone of the Devonian period. The dominant color of this stone is a 
tannish-gray. The steps leading to the platform of the porticoes are of 
granite. The porticoes, the main cornice, and the cupola are of wood. The 
four fluted columns on each of the porticoes are of the Doric order and are 
constructed of wood which has been sanded to simulate stone.

The height of the building from the ground line to the ridgepole of the roof 
measures 60 feet. North and south tetrastyle porticoes project 12 feet from 
the long sides. A raised basement elevates the upper two stories over six 
feet above the ground level. Pilasters appear on the main facades only; thus, 
a peristyle temple treatment does not carry around the building. A cupola 
rises from the center of the roof, beginning with two square bases. Its 
height is 54 feet from the base to the top of the cupola. The second square 
base atop the first is smaller in size so that a graduated series of sections 
results. The lower square structure is trimmed with a balustrade and the one 
above with a heavy cornice and pilasters at the corners. The octagonal 
lantern encircled by 16 engaged Corinthian columns and punctured by a window 
in each facet of the octagon is capped with a ribbed dome.

To date, Hague's original plans for Old Capitol have not been located. 
However, they were described as follows in the Journal of the Legislative 
Assembly of the Territory of Iowa (1841): "...the basement story is entered 
by two doors in the opposite ends, both opening into a hall seven feet wide, 
which runs directly through the building north and south, dividing it into 
two equal parts. There are four rooms on each side about twenty feet 
square, designed for committee rooms. There is also a large and convenient 
wood-room, and a fire-proof vault, arched with brick, and covered with 
grouted masonry, more than three feet thick, for the safety of public 
documents. On the next floor there is the same division north and south, 
and a broad hall or vestibule east and west, entered from the porticoes on 
each side of the building. North of the vestibule, east side, is a room 
forty-three by twenty-two and a half feet, designed for the supreme court; 
a corresponding room of the same size on the south of the vestibule, is 
designed for the use of the Secretary of the Territory. West of the north 
and south hall are four rooms, equal in size, designed for the use of the 
Governor, Auditor, Treasurer, and the Library. On the upper floor the north 
and south hall is omitted. In the south wing is the Representatives hall, 
fifty-two by forty-three in the clear. In the north wing are the Council 
chamber and three small committee rooms, cut off from the west of it."

(Continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The "Old Capitol" building at the center of the University of Iowa (Iowa City) 
was Iowa's first permanent capitol (1846-1857) although it was built as the 
Third Territorial Capitol of Iowa (1842-1846) and was taken over by the 
University of Iowa when the legislature moved to Des Moines in 1857. The 
building in the Greek Revival style was designed by John Francis Rague who 
had won the competition to design the first Illinois Capitol at Springfield 
(1837).

Rague was the New Jersey born son of a Franch surgeon who had served with 
Lafayette during the American Revolution. He studied with Minard Lafever in 
New York City and practiced there before emigrating to Illinois. He won the 
$200 prize in the Illinois Capitol competition and shortly thereafter 
submitted plans (1839) for Iowa's Capitol. The cornerstone was laid July 4, 
1840 nine days later Rague resigned probably because of financial uncertainty- 
later he finished the Springfield building (1844), practised in Milwaukee and 
finally in Dubuque where he died in 1877.

In addition to its distinguished architecture, Old Capitol has important 
historic significance for the State. The site was selected in 1839 what was 
then an oak grove by a river later became Iowa City. This building was the 
Third Territorial Capitol and from the beginning there was not enough money 
to build quickly it was finally finished in 1858, a year after the State 
had moved to a new capitol at Des Moines. However, it was in this building 
that Iowa inaugurated its first governor and its first six General 
Assemblies met here, the constitution of the State was drafted in the 
building and the State University was chartered here in 1847. Old Capitol 
was the university's first permanent building and administrative offices 
functioned there for 113 years until 1970 when restoration began. It is the 
most important campus building, a symbol of the history of both the University 
and the State of Iowa.

The first renovation took place in 1921 to 1924. Some of the work was 
necessary repair; the weakened wooden tower had four steel support columns 
inserted in the walls and footings and the unifinished west portico was 
completed (oddly, the original construction had provided a foundation for the

(Continued)
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The Hall or vestibule is centered with a reverse spiral staircase which 
connects the first and second floors. Originally, the first floor and the 
basement were connected by a straight staircase, immediately below the spiral 
staircase, which extended from the north on the first floor to the south at 
the basement level.

Old Capitol was at first lighted with candles, later gas lamps were installed 
and by the mid-1870's electricity. An ammendment to a resolution passed by 
the Senate in 1848 tells how the building was heated: "Resolved, that no 
person, or the stove in the lobby, be permitted to smoke, in the Senate 
chamber during the time the Senate is in session." A report on the installa­ 
tion of a steam heating system in 1878 said, "that the old apparatus was 
intolerable."

On site inspection of the restoration (July 1975) was extremely impressive  
the research is meticulous and the hand work excellent it will be an 
outstanding preservation project.

v-^ .
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west portico, which was not built, while the last portico was built without 
a foundation both omissions were corrected). The reverse spiral stair that 
was beyond repair was replaced and extended to the ground floor. Gold leaf 
was applied to the dome.

The 1970 restoration will take Old Capitol back to Hague's original plan 
wherever possible adding as much of the original furniture used by the early 
legislators. The lower level will be museum and university offices.

t^-_
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Act of Congress, approved March 3, 1839 (U. S. Statutes at Large, Vol. 5,
p. 330) grants one section of land to be selected within the territory 
of Iowa to said territory for the seat of government; notice of 
selection to be returned to the register of the land office within 
one year.

Act of Territorial Legislature, approved January 21, 1839, (Laws of Iowa, 
1838-39, p. 435) provides for locating the seat of government in 
Johnson County.

Act of Territorial Legislature, approved January 21, 1839, (Laws of Iowa, 
1838-39, p. 437) provides for laying out a town to be called "Iowa 
City," and for sale of lots therein.

Commissioner's Section of Section 10, twp. 79 north, range 6 west of the 5th 
p.m. reported to register of land office in Dubuque, October 12, 1839. 
Recorded June 30, 1920, book 128, page 108, Deed Records of Johnson 
County. Plat made July 4, 1839, approved July 12, 1839, recorded 
July 13, 1839, (copied on plat book 1, p. 116).

Laws of Iowa Chapter 125; Acts of the 1st G. A.:

An Act to Locate and Establish a State University.
Section 1. Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa, 
that there shall be established at Iowa City, the present seat of 
government of the state of Iowa, an institution to be called the 
"State University of Iowa," with such branches as, in the opinion of 
the General Assembly, the public convenience may hereafter require.

Section 2. The public buildings at Iowa City, together with the ten 
acres of land on which the same are situated, be, and the same are, 
hereby granted for the use of said University: Provided, that the 
sessions of the General Assembly, and the Offices of the Officers of 
State, shall be held in the present capitol until otherwise provided 
for by law.


